
Cause of action 
This is a complaint for civil penalties for knowing and willful violations of the TCPA.  
 
Plaintiff alleges Defendant Eric Wilson sent Plaintiff a fax in violation of: 
 

• 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C): unsolicited advertisement faxed w/o explicit consent 
• 47 C.F.R. § 68.318(d): fax lacks identification of fax broadcaster 

 
47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(3) entitles Plaintiff to a minimum statutory remedy of $500 per page 
times the number of violations per page. Since there are 3 violations per page, there is 
$1,000 per page minimum remedy required by the statute. However, since Defendants 
actions are knowing or willful, Plaintiff is entitled to treble damages of $1,500 per page.  
 
 

Summary of the facts 
 
Plaintiff received an unsolicited advertisement via fax without Plaintiff’s consent in 
violation of the TCPA (47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C)) on date 9/15/03.  Exhibit “A.” 
 
On 9/16/03 Plaintiff called the fax removal number and requested Plaintiff be removed 
from the fax database.  Plaintiff also called the 800 number and spoke with Chantel 
Taylor who gave the address of the company as 26895 Aliso Creek Road, Aliso Veijo, 
CA 92656. 
 
Plaintiff received a second unsolicited advertisement via fax without Plaintiff’s consent 
in violation of the TCPA (47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C)) on date 11/24/03.  Exhibit “B.” 
 
On April 26, 2004 Plaintiff wrote to Defendant and demanded that no further faxes be 
sent and that Defendant pay Plaintiff $5,000 for violating the TCPA.  Exhibit “C.” 
 
Plaintiff received a third unsolicited advertisement via fax without Plaintiff’s consent in 
violation of the TCPA (47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C)) on date 6/7/04.  Exhibit “D.” 
 
 
LINKING EACH FAX TO FAX.COM 
 
Fax.com is a name that encompasses a number of companies according to the FCC Order 
of Forfeiture (Exhibit “E” - page 1).  Among them are: 
 
Tech Access Systems - Monrovia (where Eric Wilson received his subpoena for his 
appearance today). 
 
Lighthouse Marketing - Aliso Viejo  
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Data Research Systems - 26895 Aliso Creek Road, Aliso Viejo (the same address given 
by Chantal Taylor when I called for removal on 9/16/03).  
 
According to the March 10, 2004 Subpoena Response from PAETEC Communications 
Lighthouse Marketing is assigned the number (800) 721 1907.  This number appears on the 
fax I received on June 7, 2004.  This Subpoena Response is Exhibit “F.” 
 
All three faxes have the same "opt out" number of (877) 205 0887. 
 
 
Liability of Defendant 
 
Defendant Eric Wilson is presently an officer of Fax.com and other companies.  
According to a deposition given on January 31, 2003, by Thomas R. Roth, CFO of 
Fax.com Eric Wilson owns 33 percent of Fax.com (page 15) attached as Exhibit “G.” 
 
Eric Wilson is personally named as a defendant in The People of the State of California 
v. Fax.com, Inc, Kevin Katz; Eric Wilson. This case is attached as Exhibit “H.” 
 
The process server served him at the business address known to be associated with Tech 
Access Systems at 521 ½ Myrtle Street, Suite 1, Monrovia.  Tech Access Systems is 
named as a Fax.com company by the FCC in its Order of Forfeiture (Exhibit “E.”  Wilson 
cannot claim he is just a shareholder or that he no longer works at a Fax.com company. 
 
Officers of companies are liable if they have had direct personal participation in or 
authorization of the violations. This is true for Wilson since he is a co-founder of 
Fax.com and is integral to the technical operations of Fax.com. 
 
In addition, the TCPA broadly defines “person”. It can be a company and it can be a 
person. As an officer of a company whose core business is in violation of the TCPA, Eric 
Wilson is liable because he had direct involvement in directing TCPA violations. 
 
In its Order of Forfeiture (Exhibit “E” page 1), the FCC determined that Eric Wilson is 
personally liable under the TCPA for transmissions by Fax.com. The courts must grant 
deference to that interpretation since the FCC is the regulatory body associated with the 
TCPA.  
 
According to the FCC (Exhibit “E” page 14): 
 

It is clear from Fax.com’s own promotional material and its responses to 
our citations that Fax.com’s primary business activity itself constitutes 
a massive ongoing violation of Section 227(b)(1)(c) of the Act and 
section 64.1200(a)(3) of the Commission’s rules, and that Fax.com is well 
aware of this fact. 



Exhibit “I” is printed from the Fax.com website.  Fax.com states: 
 

Fax.com Broadcast Faxing allows you to send a high volume of fax information 
to hundreds, thousands, or even millions of recipients. 

 
In addition, Wilson was also found personally liable in the Covington & Burling case 
(after 2 years of litigation). 

 
Defendant’s actions are both knowing and willful as noted in the FCC Order. 
 
 
.     



Additional arguments 

Each fax contains at least two violations of federal law 
 
Schraut v. Rocky Mountain Reclamation (2001 TCPA Rep. 1182 (Mo. Cir. Dec. 18, 
2001) and other cases make it clear that a fax can contain more than one violation. The 
judge in that case is one of the most experienced TCPA judges in the country.  
 
The reasoning is simple: if there were only one actionable violation per fax, then there 
would be absolutely no incentive whatsoever for a junk faxer to comply with any of the 
header/identification regulations. That would make tracking the source of the fax nearly 
impossible for most people and allow junk faxers to fax with impunity. That was clearly 
not the intent of Congress. 
 
The fax does not identify the fax broadcaster that sent the fax in violation of 47 C.F.R. § 
68.318(d) 
 
The faxes sent by Defendant all contain a minimum of two violations: 
 

• 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C): unsolicited advertisement faxed w/o explicit consent 
• 47 C.F.R. § 68.318(d): fax lacks identification of the fax broadcaster 

 
In addition, the faxes also violate other provisions of 47 C.F.R. § 68.318(d) such as 
failing to identify the business on whose behalf the fax was sent. 
 
The whole point of the FCC rule was to provide identification to the recipient of the 
company sending the fax so that the recipient could sue the sender to enforce the law. 
That’s why  47 C.F.R. § 68.318(d) explicitly calls this out: 
 

that broadcaster’s name, under which it is registered to conduct business with the 
State Corporation Commission (or comparable regulatory authority), must be 
identified on the facsimile, along with the sender’s name 

 

The faxes were sent without Plaintiff’s express consent 
 
Plaintiff has never requested faxes from Fax.com.  Indeed, Plaintiff called several times 
to be removed from the fax list. 

 

Defendant is personally liable for the faxes 
 
Personal liability is extremely well established in TCPA cases. The statute ascribes 
liability to the “person” where “person” is broadly defined (see The Law below). Any 
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officer who either (a) has explicit knowledge of the activity or (b) who is an officer of a 
company whose primary purpose is to send out illegal faxes is liable for sending the fax 
under the TCPA. In addition, any person(s) involved in sending the fax are also liable. 
 
Wilson has been determined to be personally liable for sending the faxes by the FCC, by 
the California Attorney General, and by the court’s decision in the Covington & Burling 
case against Katz, Wilson, and Fax.com. 

 

Treble damages are warranted 
 
Defendant is a leading figure in organized crime.   His entire business is illegal.  Yet 
today, Fax.com still advertises on its website that it sends millions of faxes for advertisers 
(Exhibit “G.”) 
 
They are the largest fax spammer in the world. They send over 1 billion illegal faxes a 
year to over 8M fax machines in the US alone; that’s over 100 unsolicited faxes per 
machine per year. 
 
Here’s what the FCC wrote [about their responses to the FCC’s investigation]: 

Moreover, the Commission found that Fax.com appears to have engaged in a 
pattern of deception to conceal its involvement in sending the prohibited faxes, 
and that the company has not been forthcoming in its dealings with the agency.  

In view of the ``pervasive and egregious pattern of deception'' underlying the 
apparent violations and the gravity of Fax.com's conduct, the Commission 
concluded that Fax.com is apparently liable for the maximum fine of $11,000 for 
each of the 489 fax violations, for a total proposed fine of $5,379,000. 

In addition: 
 

• Numerous citations from the FCC since December 26, 2000 have been completely 
ignored.  They keep violating the law, not paying any judgments, and write off 
their legal fees as a cost of doing business. 

 
• Fax.com never pays any judgments including the FCC and Covington and Burling 

cases and various small judgments 
 
• They do not comply with legal process including court orders and document 

requests from the California Attorney General. 
 
• A $5.379M fine by the FCC has been ignored. 
  



• Their chief compliance officer, Charles Martin, is a liar. He’s lies in court and 
fabricates evidence. Because of that, he just had his Private Investigator license 
revoked by the California Department of Consumer Affairs (Exhibit “J.” 

 
o “In his April 23, 2004 decision, Judge Rosenman found that Martin lied 

under oath or manufactured evidence in a dozen cases brought against 
Fax.com by other businesses.” The Judge wrote, “...his performance of 
those acts included dishonesty, fraud and deceit.” 

 
• Eric Wilson committed perjury on June 15 when he signed an Affidavit claiming 

that Fax.com does not use 877 removal numbers.  The PATEC subpoena clearly 
shows that Fax.com uses the telephone number for the fax I received and that fax 
(Exhibit “D”) has an 877 removal number.  Furthermore, the FCC documents 
show several Fax.com 877 numbers (Exhibit “K.”).  The Affidavit signed by 
Defendant is attached as Exhibit “L.” 

 
• Defendant Eric Wilson filed a lawsuit against Plaintiff in Orange County on July 

7, 2004.   The lawsuit is filled with false claims and was clearly done to threaten  
and intimidate Plaintiff.   This lawsuit is attached as Exhibit “M.” 

 
• Defendant Wilson called Plaintiff on July 12, 2004 and told him he would drop 

his name from the lawsuit if Plaintiff dropped his Small Claims Case in this 
matter.   Plaintiff declined to be intimidated. 

 
The TCPA provides for minimum statutory damages of $500 per violation, and treble  
The definition of the term "willfully" is merely that the defendant acted voluntarily, and 
under its own free will, and regardless whether the defendant knew that it was acting in 
violation of the statute. See, e.g., 47 U.S.C. § 312(f)(1); Smith v. Wade, 461 U.S. 30, 41, 
103 S.Ct. 1625, 75 L.Ed.2d 632 (1983). 
 
Without a triple remedy,  Fax.com will write this off as a minor expense of doing 
“business” and Congress’s intent and the public interest will not be served. 
 

http://laws.lp.findlaw.com/us/461/30.html
http://laws.lp.findlaw.com/us/461/30.html


The Law 
47 USC 153 (32)   
The term ''person'' includes an individual, partnership, association, joint-stock company, trust, 
or corporation. 
47 U.S.C. § 227(a)(2)  
The term ''telephone facsimile machine'' means equipment which has the capacity 
(A) to transcribe text or images, or both, from paper into an electronic signal and to 
transmit that signal over a regular telephone line, or 

(B) to transcribe text or images (or both) from an electronic signal received over a 
regular telephone line onto paper. 

47 U.S.C. § 227(a)(4)  
The term ''unsolicited advertisement'' means any material advertising the commercial 
availability or quality of any property, goods, or services which is transmitted to any 
person without that person's prior express invitation or permission. 

47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C)  
It shall be unlawful for any person within the United States to use any telephone 
facsimile machine, computer, or other device to send an unsolicited advertisement to 
a telephone facsimile machine; 

47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(3) 
A person or entity may, if otherwise permitted by the laws or rules of court of a State, 
bring in an appropriate court of that State - 
(A) an action based on a violation of this subsection or the regulations prescribed 
under this subsection to enjoin such violation, 
(B) an action to recover for actual monetary loss from such a violation, or to receive 
$500 in damages for each such violation, whichever is greater, or 
(C) both such actions. 

If the court finds that the defendant willfully or knowingly violated this subsection or 
the regulations prescribed under this subsection, the court may, in its discretion, 
increase the amount of the award to an amount equal to not more than 3 times the 
amount available under subparagraph (B) of this paragraph. 

The regulations prescribed under 47 U.S.C. § 227(b) which were referred to in 47 U.S.C. § 
227(b)(3) include: 

47 C.F.R. § 68.318(d) 
Telephone facsimile machines; Identification of the sender of the message. It 
shall be unlawful for any person within the United States to use a computer or 
other electronic device to send any message via a telephone facsimile machine 
unless such person clearly marks, in a margin at the top or bottom of each 
transmitted page of the message or on the first page of the transmission, the 
date and time it is sent and an identification of the business, other entity, or 
individual sending the message and the telephone number of the sending 
machine or of such business, other entity, or individual. If a facsimile 
broadcaster demonstrates a high degree of involvement in the sender’s 
facsimile messages, such as supplying the numbers to which a message is 
sent, that broadcaster’s name, under which it is registered to conduct business 
with the State Corporation Commission (or comparable regulatory authority), 
must be identified on the facsimile, along with the sender’s name. Telephone 
facsimile machines manufactured on and after December 20, 1992, must 
clearly mark such identifying information on each transmitted page. 
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47 CFR 64.1200(a)(3)(ii) 
A facsimile broadcaster will be liable for violations of paragraph (a)(3) of this section if 
it demonstrates a high degree of involvement in, or actual notice of, the unlawful 
activity and fails to take steps to prevent such facsimile transmissions.  

47 CFR 64.1200(f)(4) 
The term facsimile broadcaster means a person or entity that transmits messages to 
telephone facsimile machines on behalf of another person or entity for a fee. 

Prayer for relief 
Plaintiff asks the court to award Plaintiff $5,000 plus costs (filing fees and service fees; 
see table below) for the fax sent by Defendant. 
 
This is calculated as follows: 

• $500 for violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227(b)(1)(C): unsolicited advertisement faxed 
w/o explicit consent 

• $500 for violation of 47 C.F.R. § 68.318(d): fax lacks identification of the fax 
broadcaster or advertiser 

• $1,500 in treble damages. Although the law allows for the basic $1,000 minimum 
remedy to be tripled to up to $3,000 per fax, due to small claims limitations, the 
Plaintiff can only ask the court for an award of $5,000 plus costs. 

• Costs for filing and service 
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